
Agenda 
City of Lucas  

Technology Committee Meeting 
August 13, 2019  

7:00 PM 
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Technology Committee will be held on Tuesday, August 13, 2019 at 7:00 
pm at Lucas City Hall, located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following 
agenda will be discussed.  

Call to Order 

• Roll Call
• Determination of Quorum
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones
• Pledge of Allegiance

Citizen Input & Open Discussion 
The Citizen Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the Technology Committee on any subject.  By 
completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the 
Technology Committee meeting. 

1. Citizen Input and Open Discussion (Technology Committee Vice-Chairman Trey Sleeper)

Regular Agenda 

2. Consider approving the minutes of the July 9, 2019 Technology Committee meeting.
(Technology Committee Vice-Chairman Trey Sleeper)

3. Presentation by Michael Wasserman, Owner of Denton Internet and discussion of the 
INDAGO Fiber Project. (Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak)

4. Presentation by Amye Mercer, President of Big Wave Wireless and discussion of fixed 
wireless internet service. (Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak)

5. Consider an end date to conclude data collection from the City Internet Speed Test and 
discuss necessary steps to utilize the compiled information. (Assistant to the City Manager 
Kent Souriyasak)

6. Provide travel details regarding the upcoming meeting in Mont Belvieu, Texas, to discuss 
the City of Mont Belvieu’s fiber network. (Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak)

7. Discuss potential opportunities with Grayson Collin Communications regarding fiber 
optic cable implementation to expand and improve internet service. (Technology Committee 
Vice-Chairman Trey Sleeper)

8. Adjournment.



Certification  
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us 
on or before 5:00 p.m. on August 8, 2019.   

 
______________________________________ 
Kent Souriyasak, Assistant to the City Manager 

 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending public meetings at City Hall.  Requests for accommodations or interpretive 
services should be directed to City Secretary Stacy Henderson at 972-912-1211 or by email at 
shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Technology Committee Request 

August 13, 2019 
 

Requester: Technology Committee Vice-Chairman Trey Sleeper 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Citizen Input and Open Discussion 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Technology Committee Request 

August 13, 2019 
 

Requester: Technology Committee Vice-Chairman Trey Sleeper 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approving the minutes of the July 9, 2019 Technology Committee meeting.  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the July 9, 2019 Technology Committee meeting 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the minutes of the July 9, 2019 Technology Committee meeting. 



1 | P a g e   T e c h n o l o g y  C o m m i t t e e  
  J u l y  9 ,  2 0 1 9  

 

 
 
 
 

City of  Lucas  

Technology Committee 
Regular Meeting 

July 9, 2019 
7:00 PM 

City Hall – 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas 
MINUTES 

 
Call to Order  

 
Chairman Paul Rathgeb called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. It was determined that a quorum 
was present.   
 
Committee Members Present: City Staff Present: 
Chairman Paul Rathgeb 
Member George Brody  
Member Dennis Scully 
  
Committee Members Absent: 
Vice Chairman Trey Sleeper 
Member John Frazier  
 

City Manager Joni Clarke  
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak 
Bill Baxter, City IT Consultant 
 
City Council Liaison Present:  
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 

Regular Agenda  

 
1. Citizen Input. 
 
Ilene Mougel, 651 Stinson Road, stated that she had fiber and was very pleased with her service.  Ms. 
Mougel wanted to ensure that the Committee was not considering the removal of fiber. 
 
Chairman Rathgeb assured Ms. Mougel that the City nor the Technology Committee was 
considering removing fiber in the City.  
 
2. Consider approving the minutes of the May 30, 2019 Technology Committee 

meeting.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Member Brody, seconded by Member Scully to approve the 

minutes of the May 30, 2019 Technology Committee meeting.  The motion passed 
unanimously by a 3 to 0 vote.  

 
3. Presentation by Rise Broadband and discuss resources to improve internet service in 

underserved areas.  
 

This item was not discussed as no one was present from Rise Broadband. 



2 | P a g e   T e c h n o l o g y  C o m m i t t e e  
  J u l y  9 ,  2 0 1 9  

 

4. Presentation by Signalnet Broadband to provide information on products and 
services to help improve internet service.  

 
This item was not discussed as no one was present from Signalnet Broadband. 
 

5. Presentation by Josh Mercer to provide information on technological services to help 
improve internet service.  

 
Josh Mercer with Big Wave Wireless gave a presentation discussing internet services offered by Big 
Wave Wireless, a wireless internet service provider (WISP) with towers and base stations that 
provide wireless internet connection. Mr. Mercer discussed spectrum challenges such as many 
WISPs that were deployed in unlicensed frequencies, the use of off-the-shelf inexpensive hardware, 
tower antennas at a 90-degree wide angle, and noise radio frequency environments. Mr. Mercer 
addressed how to mitigate spectrum challenges that included using RADWIN wireless carrier grade 
equipment that utilizing true beam forming technology for interference mitigation. Mr. Mercer 
stated that Big Wave Wireless consisted of base stations that could provide up to 750 Mbps per 
sector. Mr. Mercer indicated that subscribers can expect to see between 25 Mbps and 100 Mbps and 
that each tower site can reliably serve up to 200 users. Mr. Mercer explained that a base station on 
the Winningkoff tower was enough to cover most of the City, while the McGarity tower would be 
added service and a third tower could provide additional capacity as needed. 
 
Chairman Rathgeb discussed terrain that could be a concern with the equipment referenced which 
matched existing concerns in the City currently with other providers. Chairman Rathgeb suggested 
conducting site surveys to ensure the equipment could reach subscribers and be reliable.  
 
Mr. Mercer stated that he would like to have equipment in place by the end of the year.  
 
Member Brody asked the price point proposed for the service. 
 
Mr. Mercer stated that the price point had not been finalized; however, they were estimating $50 to 
$70 per subscriber.  
 
Mr. Mercer stated he would keep the committee informed when the project and equipment were 
complete and in place.  
 
6. Discuss the City of Mont Belvieu’s fiber network and consider a representative from 

the Technology Committee to attend a scheduled meeting alongside City staff at the 
City of Mont Belvieu on August 20, 2019.  

 
The Committee discussed the City of Mont Belvieu’s fiber network with it being Texas’ first 
municipally owned fiber-optic broadband network that offers subscribers internet service up to one 
gigabyte per second. City staff had been in contact with the City of Mont Belvieu to coordinate a 
meeting to have a better understanding of the planning and implementation of their fiber network.  
 
The Committee expressed interest in traveling to Mont Belvieu, Texas, in order to meet with their 
City staff and would coordinate dates for a future meeting.  
 
 
 
 



3 | P a g e   T e c h n o l o g y  C o m m i t t e e  
  J u l y  9 ,  2 0 1 9  

 

7. Discuss progress on data collection from the Internet speed test and promotional 
strategies to encourage residents to utilize the speed test.  

 
Chairman Rathgeb discussed data collected from the speed test and the locations of reported 
internet speeds thus far. Chairman Rathgeb stated that various reports would be created outlining 
the information collected but that those reports would protect private information. A geographical 
map was displayed that outlined speed results and provider information collected thus far.  
Chairman Rathgeb stated that they would continue to collect more data to present a full 
representation of internet service throughout the City. 

  
8. Discuss problem data gathering and analysis, demographic gathering and analysis, 

and universe of possible solutions.  
 
Chairman Rathgeb stated that this information had already been discussed in earlier agenda items 
and there was no discussion on this item.  
 
9. Adjournment. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Member Brody, seconded by Member Scully to adjourn the 

meeting at 7:58 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 3 to 0 vote.  
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Paul Rathgeb, Chairman     Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

  
 
 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Technology Committee Request 

August 13, 2019 
 

Requester: Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Presentation by Michael Wasserman, Owner of Denton Internet and discussion of the INDAGO 
Fiber Project.  
 
Background Information  
 
Denton Internet provides residential and commercial internet service to the Greater Denton Area. 
Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak has contacted Michael Wasserman, Owner of 
Denton Internet to discuss potential fiber expansion across North Texas as part of the company’s 
INDAGO Fiber Project, also known as Internet Networking Denton Area Gigabit Optical Fiber. 
The INDAGO Fiber Project includes a Gigabit Passive Optical Network (GPON) System which 
allows a Data Center Interconnect (DCI) to provide 32 homes to be served by a single fiber optic 
cable and has a build-out of 3,500 dwellings within a city. 
 
The Greater Denton Area faces internet challenges similar to the City of Lucas and other cities in 
Collin County. There are limited options of internet service and many Internet Service Providers 
(ISPs) are not willing to expand service to low density communities. Cost requirements are the 
biggest limitation of widespread fiber optic cable implementation. Denton Internet is planning to 
work with underserved cities to implement fiber optic cable as the costs for fiber will become 
more affordable to maintain than aging copper networks. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. INDAGO Fiber Project 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion required. 







































































Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Technology Committee Request 

August 13, 2019 
 

Requester: Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Presentation by Amye Mercer, President of Big Wave Wireless and discussion of fixed wireless 
internet service. 
 
Background Information  
 
Big Wave Wireless is a new local, woman owned business in the City of Lucas that plans to 
offer fixed wireless internet service. Big Wave Wireless is currently reviewing contracts and 
lease agreements to begin providing internet service in the City and surrounding areas. Assistant 
to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak has met with Amye Mercer, President of Big Wave 
Wireless to discuss a possible lease agreement for the Winningkoff Tower as a source to provide 
fixed wireless internet service. Big Wave Wireless will be actively working on deploying 
additional towers in the future to ensure that more areas have access to the network. Internet 
service packages will include the Total Home Wi-Fi which covers 1,500 square feet with 
additional cabling and access points available. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion required. 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Technology Committee Request 

August 13, 2019 
 

Requester: Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider an end date to conclude data collection from the City Internet Speed Test and discuss 
necessary steps to utilize the compiled information. 
 
Background Information  
 
At the Technology Committee meeting on May 30, 2019, City IT Consultant Bill Baxter 
discussed how the City Internet Speed Test collects reported data and maps internet speeds 
throughout the City of Lucas. The purpose of the City Internet Speed Test is to share the 
compiled information and detailed map with Internet Service Providers (ISPs) to consider 
possible solutions to improve internet service. The City Internet Speed Test was promoted 
throughout June and July in the Lucas Leader Newsletter, Lovejoy Messenger, City website, City 
Hall and Fire Station outdoor signs, and banner signs located throughout the City near high 
traffic intersections. 
 
As of August 6, 2019, there were 455 reports of internet speed and 25 reported internet carriers. 
The average download speed was 40.31 megabits per second and the average upload speed was 
21.91 megabits per second. The City Internet Speed Test also collected information on the type 
of internet connection from each report indicated as either Fiber, Satellite, Fixed-Wireless, 
Cable, Dial-up-DSL, LTE-Cellular, and Don’t Know (i.e. unknown). The mapping application 
used color-coordinated location points to classify internet speed into three different categories: 
 

• Black: 0 – 9.9999 Mbps 
• Blue: 10 – 49.9999 Mbps 
• Red: 50 – 9999 Mbps 

 
In order to research possible internet solutions, City staff recommends concluding the data 
collection process in August and discuss necessary steps to utilize the information. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Lucas Internet Speed Test Map 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Technology Committee Request 

August 13, 2019 
 

Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion required. 



 

LUCAS INTERNET SPEED TEST MAP 
(August 6, 2019) 

 

 



Item No. 06 City of Lucas 
Technology Committee Request 

August 13, 2019 

Requester: Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak 

Agenda Item Request 

Provide travel details regarding the upcoming meeting in Mont Belvieu, Texas, to discuss the 
City of Mont Belvieu’s fiber network. 

Background Information 

City staff has coordinated a meeting with the City of Mont Belvieu to discuss the municipally 
owned fiber network called MB Link. The meeting is scheduled for Monday, September 16, 
2019, in Mont Belvieu, Texas. The purpose of the meeting is to understand the planning and 
implementation process of MB Link and to generate ideas to help improve internet service in the 
City of Lucas. City staff has coordinated travel arrangements and will provide the travel details 
at the August 13, 2019, Technology Committee meeting. 

The confirmed meeting attendees include: 

City of Lucas attendees 
• Joni Clarke, City Manager
• Kent Souriyasak, Assistant to the City Manager
• Bill Baxter, City IT Consultant
• Paul Rathgeb, Technology Committee Chairman
• Trey Sleeper, Technology Committee Vice-Chairman
• George Brody, Technology Committee Member

City of Mont Belvieu attendees 
• Nathan Watkins, City Manager
• Scott Swigert, Assistant City Manager
• Dwight Thomas, Broadband Network Engineer
• Brian Ligon, Communications and Marketing Director

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

NA 

Budget/Financial Impact 

NA 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Technology Committee Request 

August 13, 2019 
 

Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion required. 



Item No. 07 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Technology Committee Request 

August 13, 2019 
 

Requester: Technology Committee Vice-Chairman Trey Sleeper 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss potential opportunities with Grayson Collin Communications regarding fiber optic cable 
implementation to expand and improve internet service. 
 
Background Information  
 
Electric cooperatives can potentially help municipalities access fast, reliable internet service to 
improve the quality of life for residents. The Federal Communications Commission offers 
funding opportunities to cooperatives for infrastructure and fiber optic cable implementation in 
order to expand broadband services to underserved communities. Grayson Collin 
Communications is a subsidiary of the Grayson Collin Electric Cooperative (GCEC) and offers 
fiber internet to Grayson County and Collin County. To further research possible internet 
solutions, it would be important to contact Grayson Collin Communications to discuss potential 
opportunities for fiber optic cable implementation. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion required. 


	00 - 08-13-19 Regular Agenda
	Agenda
	City of Lucas
	Technology Committee Meeting
	August 13, 2019
	7:00 PM
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Technology Committee will be held on Tuesday, August 13, 2019 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input & Open Discussion
	Regular Agenda
	Certification

	01 - Citizen Input cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02 - Minutes cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03 - Denton Internet cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03a - INDAGO Fiber Project
	SKM_C55819073111321
	SKM_C55819073111330
	SKM_C55819073111331
	SKM_C55819073111332
	SKM_C55819073111340
	SKM_C55819073111341
	SKM_C55819073111350
	SKM_C55819073111351
	SKM_C55819073111352
	SKM_C55819073111360
	SKM_C55819073111361
	SKM_C55819073111362
	SKM_C55819073111370
	SKM_C55819073111371
	SKM_C55819073111372
	SKM_C55819073111380
	SKM_C55819073111381
	SKM_C55819073111382
	SKM_C55819073111390
	SKM_C55819073111391
	SKM_C55819073111392
	SKM_C55819073111400
	SKM_C55819073111401
	SKM_C55819073111402
	SKM_C55819073111403
	SKM_C55819073111410
	SKM_C55819073111411
	SKM_C55819073111420
	SKM_C55819073111421
	SKM_C55819073111422
	SKM_C55819073111423
	SKM_C55819073111430
	SKM_C55819073111431

	04 - Big Wave Wireless cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	05 - Speed test cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	05a - Speed Test Map (08062019)
	06 - Mont Belvieu trip cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	07 - GCEC discussion cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion




